
 

	 Page	1  	
	 	

 
 Rathdrum 

                                         City Council Agenda 
                                       March 25, 2020  
                                              6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:   City Council Chamber 
    8047 W. Main Street         
    Rathdrum, ID  83858 
    (208) 687‐0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME‐PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES‐ Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA AND DECLARATION OF CONFLICT, EX‐PARTE CONTACTS 

AND SITE VISITS The declaration and justification of an amendment must be approved by 
motion of the Council.  

 
5) ACTION ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Council Minutes of March 11, 2020 
B) Special Council Minutes of March 19, 2020 
C) Emergency Council Minutes of March 21, 2020 
D) Regular and Special Bills as presented 
E) Consideration of Corbin Crossing South 4th Addition Final Plat 

 
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 

 
7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  

(No formal action allowed – 3‐minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 



 

	 Page	2  	
	 	

inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 

8) OLD BUSINESS 
 

9) NEW BUSINESS 
A) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Rathdrum Mountain Host Agreement 

 
11) STAFF REPORTS 

A) Finance Reporting 
B) City Administrator  

1. Potential Budget Hearing Date – August 19th at 6:00 pm 
 

12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 
A) American Legion Proclamation 
B) Vietnam Veterans Proclamation 

      
13) COUNCIL REPORTS    

 
14) ADJOURN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24‐hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 



Council  
Calendar 

March 25th , 2020 
 

March 25  6:00 pm  Regular Council Meeting 
March 26  6:00 pm  Citizen’s Academy – Postponed 
April 01  6:00 pm  Urban Renewal ‐ Cancelled 
April 01  7:00 pm  Historical Society 
April 02  6:00 pm  Citizen’s Academy – Postponed 
April 08   6:00 pm  Regular Council Meeting 
April 10  8:00 am   Council Pay Day 
April 11  11:00 am  Easter Egg Hunt ‐ Postponed 
April 15  6:00 pm  Planning & Zoning Commission 
April 16  11:50 am  Chamber Luncheon 
April 22  6:00 am  Regular Council Meeting 



 

	 Page	1  	
	 	

 
 Rathdrum 

                                         City Council Minutes 
                                       March 11, 2020  
                                              6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:   City Council Chamber 
    8047 W. Main Street         
    Rathdrum, ID  83858 
    (208) 687‐0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME‐PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES‐ Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 

Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT:                         Councilor Hill, Councilor Laws, Councilor Rickard, Councilor Adams 

and Mayor Holmes. 
ABSENT:        
STAFF:                               City Administrator Duce, City Clerk Halligan, City Engineer/Public 

Works Director Jump, Police Chief McLean, Sergeant Ray, City 
Planner Siess, Recreation Supervisor Stevens and City Attorney 
Herrington 

 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 
5) ACTION ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Special Council Minutes of February 26, 2020 
B) Regular and Special Bills as presented 

 



 

	 Page	2  	
	 	

            City Administrator gave a brief presentation on the consent calendar 
 
Councilor Rickard made a MOTION that we approve the Consent Calendar in its 
entirety.  Motion seconded by Councilor Hill. 

      
AYES:  Councilor Rickard  

Councilor Hill  
  Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:   

 
             Passed by all 
 
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 

 
7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  

(No formal action allowed – 3‐minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 
Les Palocsay 
6101 W Lofty Ridge St 
Rathdrum, ID 
 
You four City Council members are the eyes and ears and the voice of the residents of 
Rathdrum.  I am in favor of traffic signals.  I was told I could not talk about the alternative 
because it is on the agenda tonight.  So, I will talk traffic signals. 
 
In my informal survey 70% of the people I talked to preferred traffic lights over alternative 
methods as traffic control.  
 
As you four are the eyes and ears of the City should have a survey from the people to see 
what they really would like. 
 

8) OLD BUSINESS 
 

9) NEW BUSINESS 
A) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Phone System Upgrade 

 
City Administrator Duce gave a brief presentation on the phone system upgrade. 



 

	 Page	3  	
	 	

Councilor Laws made a MOTION that we approve the proposal for the new Phone 
System Upgrade as presented.  Motion seconded by Councilor Rickard. 

      
AYES:  Councilor Laws  

Councilor Rickard 
  Councilor Hill 
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:   

 
             Passed by all 
 

B) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of Memorandum of Understanding and Construction 
Cooperative Agreement with the Idaho Transportation Department  for SH41 widening 
project from Hayden Ave to Boekel Rd. 

 
City Engineer/Public Works director Jump gave a brief presentation on the 
Memorandum of Understanding and Construction Cooperative Agreement with the 
Idaho Transportation Department  for SH41 widening project from Hayden Ave to 
Boekel Rd. 
 
At the February 12th City Council meeting, we provided a brief presentation about 
Idaho Transportation Department ’s (ITD’s) financial participation request of the City      
of Rathdrum. We provided an itemized list of the financial components of Idaho 
Transportation Department’s (ITD’s) request, the project schedule and a few matters 
which we are still researching/discussing. 

 
The City of Rathdrum’s Financial Participation items are identified on Exhibit A. 
These items were thoroughly discussed with Idaho Transportation Department  (ITD) 
representatives and we find them to be accurate. However, there were a few lingering 
questions which were unanswered when we made our February 12th presentation. 
 
1.) This is a federal aid project. With this said, Idaho Transportation Department  (ITD) 
is receiving federal monies to construct the project. The Idaho Transportation 
Department  (ITD) participation on this project is 7.34% (92.66% federal monies). For 
the certain major intersection improvements, on the SH41 corridor, the City of 
Rathdrum is being asked to financially participate. Idaho Transportation Department  
(ITD) has informed us that the City of Rathdrum is ineligible for participating at the 
local share‐federal share financial terms. Thus, the financial participation terms, as 
presented to the City Council on February 12th, remain unchanged. 
PUBLIORKS DEPARTMENT 
2.) To avoid expensive future borings under the widened SH41 pavement with 
either water and/or sanitary sewer extensions, we were looking to get utility 



 

	 Page	4  	
	 	

casing pipes constructed as part of the project. As such, these utility casing 
pipe extensions are 100% Rathdrum’s responsibility. The unanswered 
matters pertained to the direct benefit of property owners to develop them 
properties. Leon Duce has reached out to both Don Jacklin and Don 
Arestad about their respective interests in financially participating in the 
identified utility casing pipe extensions. 
 
3.) The payment schedule has not yet been determined. Although we remain 
hopeful that Idaho Transportation Department  (ITD) will allow us to re‐pay our project 
costs under a 10‐year payment schedule, it is recognized that these terms have not yet 
been approved by the State of Idaho’s financial controller. The attached agreement 
includes language, under Section II, 2., provides for the ability to negotiate a mutually‐
agreement payment schedule. 
 
The memorandum of understanding defines certain maintenance obligations for both       
the City of Rathdrum and Idaho Transportation Department  (ITD). These items were 
thoroughly discussed with Idaho Transportation Department  (ITD) representatives. 
 
City Administrator Duce stated that he has had communication this afternoon.  The 
landowners, Don Arestad and Jacklin Group both verbally said they were working 
toward an agreement to pay for those casings. One of those stipulations was that they 
become the owners of those casings not the City and not the Idaho Transportation 
Department  (ITD). 
 
I just got work from Damon which is the Director of District 1 Idaho Transportation 
Department  (ITD), that that would be the way they see it.  I asked for him to put that 
in writing so that they could put it in their file.  Then the agreement that we would sign 
with those property owners would state in those agreements that it is their steel 
casings since they are paying for it. 
 
Councilor Adams asked what is the future ramification for these casings if they are 
owned by the landowners and the City eventually extends out to there? Are they going 
to charge us to use them?  Deed them over to the City? 
 
City Engineer/Public Works Director Jump stated that when that property seeks 
incorporation, annexation we would make that a commitment that the ownership of 
those casing pipes would be then transferred over to the City of Rathdrum. 
 
With appropriate clarification to the following items: 

 Time to repay the amount 

 Clarification if policy changes that we will pay the reduced amount 

 Traffic light ownership 



 

	 Page	5  	
	 	

 Be able to pick and choose water & sewer casing pipes once the bids come in 
 
Councilor Rickard made a MOTION that we approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding and Construction Cooperative Agreement with the Idaho 
Transportation Department  (ITD) for SH41 widening project from Hayden Ave to 
Boekel Rd with the appropriate clarification on the following items: Time to repay the 
amount, Clarification if policy changes that we will pay the reduced amount, Traffic 
light ownership, and be able to pick and choose water & sewer casing pipes once the 
bids come in, and authorize the Mayor to sign the contract.  Motion seconded by 
Councilor Laws.   
      
AYES:  Councilor Rickard  

Councilor Laws  
  Councilor Hill 
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:   

 
             Passed by all 
 

C) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Professional Services Agreement with Lake City 
Engineering for Intersection Improvements at Meyer Road – Lancaster Road 

 
City Engineer/Public Works director Jump gave a brief presentation on the Professional 
Services Agreement with Lake City Engineering for Intersection Improvements at 
Meyer Road – Lancaster Road 

 
There is a commercial development project proposed on the southeast corner of 
Lancaster Road and Meyer Road. Through various annexations and platting 
processes, the City of Rathdrum has obtained/reserved public right‐of‐way from all 4 
quadrants of the intersection. The obtained right‐of‐way was based upon a 
superimposed dual‐lane roundabout footprint. 
 
With the public right‐of‐way having already been obtained, recent accident history and 
a commercial development project being proposed at the southeast corner, we believe 
that it is now appropriate to make major intersection improvements. Further, we are 
considering that the commercial development contractor completes the Lancaster‐ 
Meyer intersection improvements with reimbursement from the City of Rathdrum’s 
Traffic Circulation Impact Fee Fund. We believe that there is mutual benefit in having 
these intersection improvements completed simultaneously with the commercial 
development project. Further, we believe that there is significant benefit with utilizing 
the same engineering consultant to design both the intersection improvements and 
the nearby/adjoining site development project (SE Corner) 



 

	 Page	6  	
	 	

Councilor Rickard made a MOTION that we approve the Professional Services 
Agreement with Lake City Engineering for Intersection Improvements at Meyer Road – 
Lancaster Road and authorize the Mayor to sign agreement.  Motion seconded by 
Councilor Laws. 

      
AYES:  Councilor Rickard  

Councilor Laws  
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  Councilor Hill  
ABSENT:   

 
             Passed  
 

D) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the acceptance for Grant of Right‐of‐Way for unnamed 
roadway East of Corbin Crossing South 

 
City Engineer/Public Works director Jump gave a brief presentation on the Grant of 
Right‐of‐Way for unnamed roadway East of Corbin Crossing South 
 
Councilor Laws made a MOTION that we approve the acceptance for Grant of Right‐of‐
Way for unnamed roadway East of Corbin Crossing South and authorize the Mayor to 
sign contract.  Motion seconded by Councilor Hill. 

      
AYES:  Councilor Laws  

Councilor Hill  
  Councilor Rickard 
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:   

 
             Passed by all 
 

E) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Westwood Pine Preliminary Long Plat 
 

City Planner Siess gave a brief presentation on the Westwood Pine Preliminary Long 
Plat. 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of a preliminary long plat (major subdivision) to be 
known as Westwood Pines, consisting of 113 lots on approximately 50 acres of land.  
The primary purpose of the plat is to create a residential neighborhood consisting of 
110 residential lots within the Residential R‐2S (low/medium density residential) zone 
district, ranging in size from 7,540 SF to 21,143 SF in area ‐ with the average lot size 
being 8,995 SF. The required minimum lot size is 7,500 SF in this zone. The project is to 



 

	 Page	7  	
	 	

be developed in phases, subject to market conditions, with public improvements 
anticipated to be started in spring of 2020.  
 
The anticipated project phasing consists of:  
 
1. Westwood Pines original plat will consist of 50 residential lots, the commercial C‐2 
and multifamily residential R‐3 lots, and well lot. Subdivision infrastructure is 
anticipated to be completed by November 2020 with the first home within the 
subdivision to be completed by July 2021(subject to permitting). The applicant 
anticipates build‐out of 2.67 homes per month, or 32 homes per year.  
2. Westwood Pines 1st Addition plat will consist of 32 residential lots. Fencing along 
the northern boundary of the phase will be provided as discussed herein.  
3. Westwood Pines 2nd Addition plat will consist of the remaining 28 residential lots. 
Fencing along the northern boundary of the phase will be provided as discussed 
herein.  
 
Also included in the proposed plat are two (2) lots to be created within the Commercial 
C‐2 (highway/service commercial) zone district and one (1) lot located within the 
Residential R‐3 (multifamily residential) zone districts of approximately 8.8 acres. 
Within the commercial zone one lot of approximately 11,025 SF is to be dedicated to 
the City of Rathdrum for the purpose of well placement, and the remaining 
approximately 10.8‐ acres is a commercial lot. 
 
Conditions of Approval:  
1. Issuance of building permitting within the subdivision, inclusive of all zone districts, 
will be limited to 60 dwelling units until capital improvements are completed for the 
SH53‐Meyer Road intersection.  
 
2. Any non‐residential development within the subdivision, inclusive of all zone 
districts, will require a new, updated traffic LOS analysis and conformance with City 
requirements derived therefrom, as applicable.  
 
3. A Traffic Impact Analysis shall be completed per the requirements of Idaho 
Transportation Department (ITD) prior to connection of Cloverdale Street access to 
SH53. Such Traffic Impact Analysis shall be submitted to the City as well as any 
response and/or requirements from Idaho Transportation Department (ITD). The 
developer shall be responsible for providing any improvements identified as required 
by Idaho Transportation Department (ITD).  
 
4. The developer shall donate (at no cost to the City of Rathdrum and/or ITD), all 
necessary public right‐of‐way and easements on the north‐side of SH53 and east‐side 
of Meyer Road adjacent to the proposal which may be required to provide traffic 
improvements for the development.  



 

	 Page	8  	
	 	

5. The developer shall re‐construct Meyer Road, from SH53 to the property’s 
northwest boundary. The improvements for Meyer Road shall be in accordance with 
the City’s collector street typical roadway standards, as approved by the City Engineer 
/ Public Works Director.  
 
6. The new, temporary sewer force main alignment shall be contained within noted / 
platted vehicle access aisles where it crosses the City’s cemetery property. The new, 
permanent sewer force main alignment shall be contained within the Cloverdale Street 
public right‐of‐way. Both the temporary and permanent sewer force main alignments 
shall be constructed as part of this project. The Cloverdale Street force main alignment 
shall terminate on the north side of SH53.  
 
7. The developer shall be responsible for constructing a 16‐foot wide all‐weather 
vehicle access aisle, in accordance with City requirements, within the sewer force main 
alignment within the cemetery property.  
 
8. The developer shall construct a temporary sanitary sewer lift station with the 
Westwood Pines development, at the developer’s sole expense. The City shall provide 
for the required wet well volume and technical specifications for: the lift station 
components, including electrical controls, bypass pumping capabilities, emergency 
power requirement, odor control equipment, telemetry, wet well access capabilities, 
spray‐liner requirements for the wet well, site layout of the lift station and wet well 
liquid level sensor devices. Further, the City will provide direction for the sewer piping 
depth (invert elevation) and pipe sizing upstream of the temporary sewage lift station. 
City financial participation pursuant to RCC 9‐4‐10, Credits and Reimbursements, may 
be available if upsizing of the system is determined necessary. Lastly, this temporary 
sewer lift station shall be integrated in the City’s SCADA monitoring system. The 
temporary lift station shall be placed within an easement as specified by the City 
Engineer / Public Works Director and shall be owned and operated by the City of 
Rathdrum upon acceptance by the City Council.  

 
9. The developer shall construct a 12‐inch diameter water main in both the Dayton 
Avenue public right‐of‐way alignment (entirety of alignment) and Cloverdale Street. 
The Cloverdale Street 12‐inch water main shall terminate on the north side of SH53.  
 
10. Construction of the temporary sewer force main to serve the development will 
bring the public sewer within 200‐feet of the Lion’s Club property which will require 
such property to connect to the public system and abandon their private system within 
one year of City acceptance of the temporary force main. The developer shall be 
required to provide a lateral stub to service the Lion’s property and is encouraged to 
coordinate with the Lion’s Club regarding timing and payment of their connection to 
the City’s system, including capitalization fees. In no case shall connections for the RV 



 

	 Page	9  	
	 	

park be allowed without written authorization of the Director. Pre‐treatment or other 
provisions may be required.  
 
11. The developer shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City which 
specifies property and term, project regulation and policies, conditions of approval 
(including improvements to be constructed, roadway drainage swales, landscaping / 
street trees, irrigation water service lines to roadway drainage swales and landscaped 
areas, maintenance of common area landscaping, fencing and roadway drainage 
swales, irrigation system casings, walkways and stormwater, street lights, streets, 
construction access, street closure, phasing, erosion sediment control plan, dedication 
of right of way, dedication of easements and sewer), improvement construction 
standards and procedures, performance guarantee, owner’s warranty, and other City 
requirements as approved by the City Council.  
 
12. The developer shall install a six‐foot tall solid (wood or vinyl, with no gaps between 
slats) fence three‐feet south of the northern boundary of the subdivision.  
 
13. The developer shall comply with the rules and requirements of any agency with 
jurisdiction over the project, including those agencies which provided comment for this 
proposal, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations governing the project, whether 
specified herein or not. 
 
Councilor Rickard made a MOTION that we approve the Westwood Pines Preliminary 
Long Plat with the recommended Finding of Facts, Conditions of Law and Conditions of 
Approval as found within the Planning Commission’s recommendation and staff report 
dated March 4, 2020, finding that it is in accord with the City of Rathdrum 
Comprehensive Plan and Rathdrum City Code as conditioned.  Motion seconded by 
Councilor Laws. 
 
Councilor Hill stated that he needed to disclose that I had ex parte contact in the form 
of an email from a citizen that I have not responded to but the staff was CC’d on and 
have responded to the email.  I have the ability to provide it to the Council and to ask 
for legal Council on how to proceed.  
 
City Attorney Herrington stated that if you want to continue to vote on the issue you 
just disclose the ex parte contact that you have had and disclose whether or not it 
affects your ability to make a decision on the matter. 
 
Councilor Hill stated that the information I obtained absolutely weighs on my 
judgement of this project.  I think it information that the rest of the Council should be 
privy to and an opportunity to review themselves. 
 



 

	 Page	10  	
	 	

City Attorney Herrington asked Councilor Hill if he felt it was evidence that should be 
entered into the record. 
 
Councilor Hill stated yes 
 
City Attorney Herrington stated that the Council can decide whether or not to allow 
the evidence read into the record.  Our code does provide that the Council can 
consider relevant evidence as it comes in. 
 
Councilor Hill reclused himself from voting on this item and stepped down. 
 
Council Adams asked if Planning and Zoning could add a condition at this point? 
 
Councilor Laws withdrew her second 
 
Councilor Rickard withdrew his motion. 
 
Council Adams would like to see if they could put down a weed barrier fabric and some 
gravel in that 3‐foot buffer behind their fence just to levitate any over grown weeds.  
 
City Planner Siess stated that City Code does not contain any specific standards 
requiring them to do that. 
 
Councilor Rickard made a MOTION that we approve the Westwood Pines Preliminary 
Long Plat with the recommended Finding of Facts, Conditions of Law and Conditions of 
Approval as found within the Planning Commission’s recommendation and staff report 
dated March 4, 2020, finding that it is in accord with the City of Rathdrum 
Comprehensive Plan and Rathdrum City Code as conditioned.  Motion seconded by 
Councilor Laws. 

      
AYES:  Councilor Rickard  

Councilor Laws  
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:   

 
             Passed  

 
Council Hill returned to Council 
 

11) STAFF REPORTS 
A) Public Works Reporting  
B) Police Reporting 



 

	 Page	11  	
	 	

C) Park and Recreation Reporting 
D) City Administrator  

 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 
      
13) COUNCIL REPORTS    

 
14) ADJOURN 

 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:10 pm 
 

 
 
_____________________________________ 

                                                                          Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24‐hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 



 

 Page 1  
  

 
 Rathdrum 

                                         Special City Council Minutes 
                                March 19, 2020  
                                      6:00 p.m. 
   
 
 
Location:  City Council Chamber 
  8047 W. Main Street     
  Rathdrum, ID  83858 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 

Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 
 

PRESENT:                         Councilor Hill, Councilor Rickard, Councilor Adams and Mayor 
Holmes. Councilor Laws via phone 

ABSENT:       
STAFF:                               City Administrator Duce, City Clerk Halligan.  City Attorney 

Herrington via Zoom video Conference 
 
4) NEW BUSINESS 

A) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of consent for the Local Disaster Emergency 
Proclamation 

 
City Administrator Duce read the Local Disaster Emergency Proclamation and the 
Resolution affirmation of Local Emergency Declaration of COVID-19 
 
 



 

 Page 2  
  

City Administrator Duce stated that the primary reason for the Emergency 
Proclamation and Resolution is for the ability to get Federal and State reimbursements 
for the City. 
 
City Administrator Duce discussed what the Government has stated in regard to the 
COVID-19 virus and what the City has put into place for the safety of our employees. 
 
He also stated that we have cancelled public hearings at this time.   
 
We have set up a Zoom account to hold future meetings. He explained to the Council 
how the Zoom account works. 
  
Councilor Rickard made a MOTION that we adopt the Resolution for Rathdrum City 
Council affirmation of Local Emergency Declaration regarding COVID-19 and authorize 
the Mayor to sign.  Motion seconded by Councilor Laws. 

      
AYES: Councilor Rickard  

Councilor Hill  
 Councilor Laws 
 Councilor Adams 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT:  

 
             Passed by all 
 
5) ADJOURN 

 
Meeting was adjourned at 6:34 pm 
 

 
_____________________________________ 

                                                                          Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 



 

	 Page	1  	
	 	

 
 Rathdrum 

                                         Emergency City Council Minutes 
                                       March 21, 2020  
                                              6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:   City Council Chamber 
    8047 W. Main Street         
    Rathdrum, ID  83858 
    (208) 687‐0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME‐PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES‐ Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 

Meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT:                         Mayor Holmes.  Councilor Hill, Councilor Laws, Councilor Rickard, 

Councilor Adams via Zoom video Conference 
ABSENT:        
STAFF:                               City Administrator Duce.  City Clerk Halligan, Police Chief McLean, 

Sergeant Ray and City Attorney Herrington via Zoom video 
Conference. 

 
Mayor Holmes stated the reason for this Emergency meeting is to declare this an 
Emergency and the Public Health Department is on board with the closing of the bars and 
restaurant  

 
4) NEW BUSINESS 

A) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of Emergency Powers Ordinance – New Title 1 Chapter 9 
“Emergency Powers” 



 

	 Page	2  	
	 	

 
 

Councilor Rickard made a MOTION that Emergency Powers Ordinance be placed on its  
first reading by title only, under suspension of the rules and to waiver its second & third 
readings.  Motion seconded by Councilor Laws. 
 
      

AYES:  Councilor Rickard  
Councilor Laws 

  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  Councilor Hill 
ABSENT:   

 
Passed  
 
Mayor then reads Ordinance by title only. 
 
Councilor Rickard made a MOTION to adopt Emergency Powers Ordinance and to 
publish by summary only & incorporate the title of the Ordinance into the body  
of the summary. 
 
      

AYES:  Councilor Rickard  
Councilor Hill  

  Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:   

 
      Passed by all 

 
B) Discussion Item: Public Health Emergency Order 

 
City Administrator read the  Public Health Emergency Order dated March 21, 2020 into 
the record 
  

5) ADJOURN 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 6:39 pm 
 
 
 

 



 

	 Page	3  	
	 	

_____________________________________ 
                                                                          Vic Holmes, Mayor 

 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24‐hours’ notice prior to the meeting.  



















February CD Journal

Date Ref No. Payee or Description GL No. Account Title Debit
2/29/20 1 Clear out Stale Checks 10-370-150 MISCELLANEOUS -1,272.00

2/4/20 2 Visa Interchange Charges- Online Bill Pay 10-416-429 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - OTHER 608.00

Visa Interchange Charges- Online Bill Pay 60-434-420 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 608.00

Visa Interchange Charges- Online Bill Pay 61-434-429 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - OTHER 608.00

2/5/20 3 Xpress Bill Pay- Monthly Charges 10-416-429 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - OTHER 299.00

Xpress Bill Pay- Monthly Charges 60-434-420 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 299.00

Xpress Bill Pay- Monthly Charges 61-434-429 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - OTHER 299.00

2/5/20 4 Transfer to General SIP 10-104000 IDAHO INV POOL - GENERAL 1,900,000.00

2/19/20 5 Monthly SWT- January 10-217200 SWT PAYABLE 9,955.00

2/26/20 6 Monthly Veba Contribution- March 10-217650 VEBA HRA PAYABLE 10,410.00

2/27/20 7 Caselle Monthly Charges 10-415-895 SOFTWARE/CASELLE/LASERFICHE 524.00

Caselle Monthly Charges 60-434-850 SOFTWARE/CASELLE/LASERFICHE 524.00

Caselle Monthly Charges 61-434-850 SOFTWARE/CASELLE/LASERFICHE 524.00

2/29/20 8 Monthly Banking Fees 10-416-429 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - OTHER 50.00

2/3/20 15168 Freight Liner Northwest- Pully Assembly 10-431-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 165.00

2/3/20 15169 Leon Duce- Amazon Credit/Wrong Card 10-415-320 OPERATING & SPECIAL DEPT SUPPL 18.00

2/3/20 15170 Garret & Co, Inc.- Toddler Seats for Parks 10-438-755 EQUIPMENT PURCHASE < 1,000 646.00

2/3/20 15171 Troy Snyder- Father/Daughter Dance Refund 10-440-805 DAUGHTER PROGRAMS 15.00

2/4/20 15172 Donut House- Donuts for Father/Daughter Dance 10-440-805 DAUGHTER PROGRAMS 284.00

2/4/20 15173 Myia Lachey- Mother/Son Adventure Refund 10-440-810 SON PROGRAMS 32.00

2/5/20 15174 Alex Horning- Basketball Referee 10-440-130 SALARIES/REFEREES/SCOREKEEPERS 240.00

2/5/20 15175 William Jessel- Basketball Referee 10-440-130 SALARIES/REFEREES/SCOREKEEPERS 120.00

2/5/20 15176 Daron Neet- Baggage & Airport Parking 10-425-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 84.00

2/10/20 15177 Triple Play- Mother Son Adventure 10-440-810 SON PROGRAMS 806.00

2/10/20 15178 Josh Baker- Lunch @ SRT Training 10-421-470 TRAVEL- MEALS & LODGING 11.00

2/12/20 15179 Visa- January Credit Card Payment/TM 10-421-470 TRAVEL- MEALS & LODGING 166.00

Visa- January Credit Card Payment/TM 10-421-797 SOFTWARE/HARDWARE MAINT AGRMT 15.00

Visa- January Credit Card Payment/TM 10-421-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 419.00

2/13/20 15180 Amanda Eisinger- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 169.00

2/13/20 15181 Hayden Homes- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 137.00

2/13/20 15182 Alex Horning- Basketball Referee 10-440-130 SALARIES/REFEREES/SCOREKEEPERS 20.00

2/13/20 15183 William Jessel- Basketball Referee 10-440-130 SALARIES/REFEREES/SCOREKEEPERS 60.00

2/14/20 15184 Visa- January Credit Card Payment/KJ 10-423-370 POSTAGE 170.00

Visa- January Credit Card Payment/KJ 10-423-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 486.00

Visa- January Credit Card Payment/KJ 10-423-490 TESTING/SCHOOLING 135.00

Visa- January Credit Card Payment/KJ 10-426-490 SCHOOLING 250.00

Visa- January Credit Card Payment/KJ 10-423-720 BUILDING MAINTENANCE CITY HALL 356.00

Visa- January Credit Card Payment/KJ 10-423-320 OPERATING & SPECIAL DEPT SUPPL 389.00

Visa- January Credit Card Payment/KJ 10-415-820 SERVICE CHARGES 59.00

2/19/20 15185 CASH- Petty Cash 10-424-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 46.00

CASH- Petty Cash 10-415-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 31.00

CASH- Petty Cash 60-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 21.00

CASH- Petty Cash 61-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 21.00

CASH- Petty Cash 10-426-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 36.00

CASH- Petty Cash 60-436-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 17.00

CASH- Petty Cash 61-436-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 17.00

CASH- Petty Cash 10-423-720 BUILDING MAINTENANCE CITY HALL 12.00

2/19/20 15186 VISA- January Credit Card/LD 10-414-215 EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 279.00

VISA- January Credit Card/LD 10-415-320 OPERATING & SPECIAL DEPT SUPPL 194.00

VISA- January Credit Card/LD 10-414-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 307.00

VISA- January Credit Card/LD 60-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 207.00

1



February CD Journal

Date Ref No. Payee or Description GL No. Account Title Debit

VISA- January Credit Card/LD 61-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 307.00

VISA- January Credit Card/LD 10-415-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 330.00

VISA- January Credit Card/LD 10-421-470 TRAVEL- MEALS & LODGING 262.00

2/20/20 15187 Alex Horning- Basketball Referee 10-440-130 SALARIES/REFEREES/SCOREKEEPERS 80.00

2/20/20 15188 Costco- Police Department Supplies 10-421-320 OPERATING & SPECIAL DEPT SUPPL 628.00

2/20/20 15189 Modern Marketing- Star Stickers 10-421-320 OPERATING & SPECIAL DEPT SUPPL 323.00

2/20/20 15190 V Sports Arena- Father/Son Nerf Wars 10-440-810 SON PROGRAMS 354.00

2/20/20 15191 David Magsam- Father/Son Nerf Wars Refund 10-440-810 SON PROGRAMS 25.00

2/20/20 15192 Eric Cooper- Basketball Referee 10-440-429 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES/CLASSES 36.00

2/21/20 15193 Corina Larabee- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 106.00

2/21/20 15194 Chase Bennett- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 86.00

2/21/20 15195 Coldirion & Sarah Tester- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 31.00

2/21/20 15196 Charlotte Weaver- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 132.00

2/24/20 15197 AFLAC- March Premium 10-218200 AFLAC PAYABLE 1,476.00

2/25/20 15198 Colonial Life- February Premium 10-218500 LIFE INS. (VOL/CITY) PAYABLE 253.00

2/25/20 15199 Jeremy Millert- Staff Lunch 10-435-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 44.00

2/26/20 15200 Chase Burcham- Replaced Payroll Check 10-440-130 SALARIES/REFEREES/SCOREKEEPERS 18.00

2/27/20 15201 Pat Wilfong- Volleyball Refund 10-370-210 RECREATION FEES 200.00

2/27/20 15202 Melissa Taylor- Mileage Reimbursement 11/19-2/20 10-415-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 24.00

Melissa Taylor- Mileage Reimbursement 11/19-2/20 60-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 24.00

Melissa Taylor- Mileage Reimbursement 11/19-2/20 61-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 24.00

2/27/20 15203 Alex Horning- Basketball Referee 10-440-130 SALARIES/REFEREES/SCOREKEEPERS 80.00

2/28/20 15204 US Postal Service- February Utility Bills 10-415-370 POSTAGE 285.00

US Postal Service- February Utility Bills 60-434-370 POSTAGE 285.00

US Postal Service- February Utility Bills 61-434-370 POSTAGE 285.00

1,935,574.00

2



Corbin Crossing 4th Addition - Final Plat Staff_CC.doc  

 1 

 

 

City of Rathdrum 

City Council 
  

Staff Report – Final Plat 
 

 

To: Rathdrum City Council 

From: City of Rathdrum Planning and Zoning Administrator 

Date of Report: March 20, 2020 

Subject: Corbin Crossing South 4th Addition - Final Plat (Major Subdivision)  

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Applicant / Owner:  Copper Basin Construction, Inc., Steve White, President, PO Box 949, Hayden, ID 83835. 

Applicant’s Representative:   Representing the Applicant is Drew Dittman, PE, Lake City Engineering, Inc. 126 

E. Poplar Ave, Coeur d’Alene, ID 83814. 

Request:  The Applicant is requesting final approval of this phase of Corbin Crossing South, to be known as the 

4th Addition. The approved preliminary plat consisted of 190-single family residential lots and 1-multi-family lot 

on approximately 43.30 acres within the R-3 zone.     

Phasing was anticipated to consist of 30 to 50 lots per phase with lots ranging from 6,000 SF to 11,080 SF in size, 

with the average lot size 6,962 SF and one multi-family lot 61,157 SF.  

This phase consists of 48 lots (one lot fewer than shown in the preliminary plat) with extensions of street 

infrastructure and utilities in Harmony Street, Airhorn Avenue and Alliance and a new street – Locomotive Street 

(previously “Street F”).  

Site Information / Location of Project:  The project site 

is generally located east of Meyer Road and north of 

Lancaster Road.  

The Kootenai County Assessors Tax Parcel Number is R-

L249-010-008-0. The legal description “a replat of Lot 6, 

Block 14 of Corbin Crossing South 3rd Addition and 

incorporating vacated right of way per Ordinance 586 

(Kootenai County Recorder’s #2731045000) lying in the 

Southwest Quarter of Section 5, Township 51 North, 

Range 4 West, Boise Meridian, City of Rathdrum, 

Kootenai County, Idaho, as found within the title report 

submitted with the application. 

Zoning:  The property is located within the Residential 

R-3 zone district.  

Comprehensive Plan Designation:  The Future Land 

Use Map identifies the site and adjacent properties as Residential. 

 



Corbin Crossing 4th Addition - Final Plat Staff_CC.doc   

 2 

 

 

PROJECT REVIEW 

Staff Review and Recommendation: 

City planning and public works staff have reviewed the proposed subdivision and determined that it is 

substantially consistent with the Preliminary Plat approval and the Development Agreement recorded March 24, 

2016, subject to minor technical changes.  The proposed subdivision is also compliant with RCC Title 12, 

including but not limited to Final Plat Standards of RCC 12-3-4. 

The developer has made significant improvements to the property and has indicated that an acceptable surety as 

provided by City Code for the remaining incomplete infrastructure will be posted.  The City has not yet received 

the surety for the incomplete work. When the performance surety is received, such will be reviewed for 

acceptance by the City Attorney. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this proposal on August 21, 2019 and recommends Approval the 

Phase I final plat to the City Council, subject to the Findings and Conclusions as discussed herein. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation to the City Council addresses the following City Code 

Sections 12-3-3-(2) (A) through (F): 

Section 12-3-3-2 

Findings: 

1. Pursuant to RCC 12-3-3-2-A the final plat is required to meet established standards.  

2. The final plat shall conform to the preliminary plat per RCC 12-3-3-2-B.  

3. The plat shall include the necessary Certificates and Statements of Approval per RCC 12-3-3-2-C.  

4. A title report confirming that title to the land in the proposed subdivision is vested in the name of the 

owner whose signature appears on the plat is required per RCC 12-3-3-2-C. 

5. Improvements and facilities required by the City for the subdivision shall be completed or a suitable 

guarantee shall be provided. Costs incurred by the City for plan, specification or drawing review and 

approval or construction inspection shall be paid by the subdivider. 

6. The subdivider shall provide warranty that the required water, sewer and street improvements and 

facilities will be free from defects in material and workmanship.  

7. Any Finding of Fact which is more correctly a Conclusion of Law is incorporated herein by this 

reference. 

Conclusions 

1. The final plat meets all standards established by Idaho Code and RCC Title 12 relating to final plats, 

including the checklist, which can be modified by the council. 

2. The final plat is essentially the same as the preliminary plat and the conditions imposed when the 

preliminary plat was approved have been met. The City Engineer, Public Works Director or City Council 

may recommend modifications of the preliminary plat up to the time of Council approval of the final plat. 

3. The final plat bears the certificates and statements of approval required by RCC Title 12. 

4. The Applicant has submitted a title report, from a title insurance company authorized to do business in the 

state, confirming that title of the land in the proposed subdivision is vested in the name of the owner 

whose signature appears on the plat. 

5. The facilities and improvements required to be provided by the subdivider have been completed, and the 

costs incurred by the City for plan, specification or drawing review and approval or construction 



Corbin Crossing 4th Addition - Final Plat Staff_CC.doc   

 3 

 

 

inspection have been paid by the subdivider, or the subdivider has or will provide an irrevocable letter of 

credit or other suitable guarantee acceptable to the City in an amount of one hundred fifty percent (150%) 

of the estimated cost as approved by the City Engineer and with responsible sureties commensurate with 

improvements remaining to be done and costs to be paid, securing to the City the construction and 

installation of the improvements and payment of the costs which will be or have been incurred by the City 

within the fixed time period established by the Council. 

6. Water and Sewer: The subdivider has provided, or will provide, a standard written warranty that the 

required water and sewer improvements and facilities will be free from defects in material and 

workmanship for a period of one year from the date of acceptance of the improvements by the city, 

secured by a performance bond in the amount of twenty five percent (25%) of the actual construction cost 

of the warranted improvements and facilities. 

7. Street Improvements: The subdivider has provided, or will provide, a warranty that the required street 

improvements will be free from defects in material and workmanship for a period of two (2) years from 

the date of acceptance of the improvements by the city, secured by a performance bond in the amount of 

twenty five percent (25%) of the actual construction cost of the warranted improvements. 

8. Any Conclusion of Law which is more correctly a Finding of Fact is incorporated herein by this 

reference. 

Potential Motions:  The language set forth below is provided for guidance with no intent to suggest any specific 

action. 

APPROVAL:  I move to recommend to the City Council that the proposal be approved, finding that it is in 

accord with the applicable City Code as identified within the Findings and Conclusions of the Staff Report. I 

further move that the Mayor is authorized to sign the final plat mylar for recording upon the City’s receipt of 

an acceptable surety and warranties. 

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL (Optional): I further move that the following additional 

conditions be met in accordance with Rathdrum City Code:        

DENIAL:  I move to recommend to the City Council that the proposal as presented be denied, finding that it 

is not in accord with Rathdrum City Code for the following reasons:     



Corbin Crossing 4th Addition - Final Plat Staff_CC.doc   

 4 

 

 

Staff Contact: 

Cary Siess, City Planner / Planning and Zoning Administrator 

City of Rathdrum Public Works Department, Planning Division  

8047 W. Main Street, Rathdrum, Idaho 83858 

Phone: 208-687-2700 x 117 / Email: cary@rathdrum.org 

  

Attached Exhibits: 

Exhibit A – Preliminary Subdivision  

Exhibit B – 4th Addition Final Subdivision  



Corbin Crossing 4th Addition - Final Plat Staff_CC.doc   

 5 

 

 

  

Exhibit A 



Corbin Crossing 4th Addition - Final Plat Staff_CC.doc   

 6 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 



Corbin Crossing 4th Addition - Final Plat Staff_CC.doc   

 7 

 

 

 



Corbin Crossing 4th Addition - Final Plat Staff_CC.doc   

 8 

 

 

 



RATHDRUM MOUNTAIN SITE HOST AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, entered into the _______ day of ______________, 2020, between 
the City of Rathdrum, a municipal corporation organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Idaho, 
hereinafter referred to as “CITY” and ________________________________, hereinafter 
referred to as “CONTRACTOR”. 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the citizens of the City of Rathdrum to have available 
to them recreational activities which will provide positive outdoor experiences; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the services of a host on-site at Rathdrum 
Mountain; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR desires to and will act as Rathdrum Mountain Site Host. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree as follows: 
 
1. DUTIES OF CONTRACTOR: 
 

A. PERFORMANCE:  CONTRACTOR shall act as the Rathdrum Mountain Site Host 
Beginning Thursday, April 2nd, 2020 through Monday, October 12th, 2020.   

 
B. EQUIPMENT REQUIRED: CONTRACTOR shall provide a self-contained 

Recreational Vehicle or RV which shall be on-site during scheduled working days. 
CONTRACTOR understands that no potable water or electricity will be provided 
on-site.  CONTRACTOR will be responsible to provide for their own potable water 
and a generator for electricity.   

 
C. INDEMNIFICATION:  CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold 

harmless CITY and all its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any 
and all claims, losses, actions, or judgments for damages or injury to persons or 
property arising out of or in connection with their performance or equipment.   

 
D. DIRECTIVES:  CONTRACTOR shall comply with and abide by any reasonable 

and lawful directives issued by an authorized agent of the CITY. 
 
E. WORKER’S COMPENSATION:  CONTRACTOR shall provide proof that the 

CONTRACTOR is covered by worker's compensation insurance or that such 
worker's compensation insurance is not required under the circumstances. 

 
F. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW:  CONTRACTOR shall comply with and abide by 

all federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances. 
 
G. ENDORSEMENTS:  CONTRACTOR shall make no commercial endorsements of 

any product or business while on City property. 



 
H. WORK SCHEDULE:  Work Schedule shall be Thursday through Monday each 

week.  CONTRACTOR shall be present and ready to greet visitors at the city 
assigned Rathdrum Mountain host site at 7:00 a.m. every Thursday and remain on 
site 24 hours a day until Monday at 7:00 p.m. The daily work schedule shall be 
from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.  The CITY and CONTRACTOR shall mutually 
determine and agree in good faith to delay, suspend, or cancel any of 
CONTRACTOR's performance when conditions are present that would render the 
performance impossible, hazardous, or unsafe. 

 
2. DUTIES OF CITY: 
 

A. PAYMENT:  The CITY shall pay to CONTRACTOR a total of $1,200.00 per 
calendar month. CITY will provide a check for $600.00 on the 1st and 15th of each 
month.    

 
B. SITE: The CITY shall provide an adequately sized paved site for RV. 
 
C. SERVICES/SUPPLIES: CITY shall pay for and coordinate the disposal of RV 

wastewater throughout the season.  CITY will provide the CONTRACTOR with a 
list of emergency contacts.  CITY staff will visit the host site daily to check-in with 
the site host and empty trash cans.  CITY will provide CONTRACTOR with all 
necessary information about the property so CONTRACTOR can effectively 
provide mountain visitors with information.      

 
3. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS: 
 

A. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  The parties agree that CONTRACTOR is 
declared as an independent contractor of the CITY and in no way is considered an 
employee/employees or agents of CITY and are not entitled to worker’s 
compensation or any benefit of employment with the CITY.  CITY shall have no 
control over the performance of this Agreement by the CONTRACTOR, except to 
specify the time and place of performance and the results to be achieved.  
CONTRACTOR agrees to pay and be responsible for all taxes due from the 
compensation received under this Agreement. 

 
B. COMMISSION:  There is to be no commission deducted from the payment for any 

other agent or agency. 
 
C. JURISDICTION AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be governed and 

interpreted by the laws of the State of Idaho with the venue in the County of 
Kootenai, State of Idaho. 

 
D. ATTORNEY FEES:  In the event of any litigation arising under, or as a result of 

this Agreement, the prevailing party shall recover its costs and reasonable attorney 
fees. 

 



E. SEVERABILITY:  In the event of any provision or section of this Agreement 
conflicts with applicable law, or is otherwise held to be unenforceable, the 
remaining provisions shall nevertheless be enforceable and shall be carried into 
effect. 

 
F. MODIFICATION:  This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a writing 

duly executed by both parties. 
 
G. MERGER:  This writing embodies the entire agreement of the parties, and they 

expressly acknowledge that there are no promises, terms, conditions, or obligations 
other than those contained in this Agreement.  All previous and contemporaneous 
communications, representations, or agreements, either verbal or written, between 
the parties are superseded by this Agreement. 

 
H. NON-DISCRIMINATION:  No person shall be discriminated against in the 

providing of the services and/or materials herein under, and the CONTRACTOR, 
nor any subcontractor, shall not refuse to hire any person because of such person’s 
race, creed, sex, color, or national origin.    Also, the CONTRACTOR will in no 
manner discriminate against any person because of such person’s race, creed, sex, 
color, or national origin.  Any such discrimination shall be deemed a violation of 
this Agreement and shall render this Agreement subject to forfeiture. 

 
 
 
DATED this ________ day of __________, 2020. 
 
CITY OF RATHDRUM CONTRACTOR 
 
 
By:  ______________________________ _________________________________ 
      Vic Homes, Mayor  Site Host Representative 
 
Attest:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Sherri Halligan, City Clerk 
 



1 

 

STAFF REPORT 
February 2020 

Finance & Administration 
 

CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 
 

1. New Utility Accounts – 19 – Closed Utility Accounts – 8 
2. Normal Monthly Activity (Utility Bills/Customer 

Service/Payables/Payroll/General Ledger) 
3. Accounts Payable 
4. Monthly SWT Reporting 
5. Monthly Financial Statements 
6. Monthly Bank Reconciliation 
7. Monthly Investment Pool Reconciliation 
8. Department Head Credit Card Reconciliation 
9. New Phone System Corrections & work on new quote for updates 
10. Senior Center Meetings 
11. Purchase of new Council room and staff table chairs 
12. Website Upgrade & updates 
13. Urban Renewal Financials 
14. File & Retention Organization 
15. Council meeting preparation 
16. Attend HR monthly meetings 
17. Reconciliation of ICRMP Claims 
18. Reconciliation of State Insurance Fund Claims 
19. Finish up Audit Work for FY18-19 
________________________________________________________ 



PROCLAMATION 

 
 

WHEREAS, The American Legion has been a staunch advocate for 
Veterans and their families since 1919; and 

WHEREAS, The American Legion was founded on the four pillars of 
Care for America’s Veterans, a strong National Defense, Americanism 
and Service to Children and Youth; and 

WHEREAS, The American Legion has played a leading role in Federal 
and State initiatives that have improved the lives of Veterans and 
Americans in every community, leading the way to create the U.S. Flag 
Code, the Veterans Administration and the GI Bill; and 

WHEREAS, the Colonel Manuel Schneidmiller American Legion Post 154 
of the City of Rathdrum has fulfilled the Legion’s mission since 2015 
through programs such Veterans Recognition, Boys and Girls State, 
American Legion Oratory Scholarships, American Legion Baseball and 
participation in City programs including our youth recreation program, 
Easter Egg Hunt and Rathdrum Days; and 

WHEREAS,  The American Legion is celebrating the 101 years of its’ 
founding in 1919; 

NOW THEREFORE, I Vic Holmes, Mayor of the City of Rathdrum, 
Idaho do hereby proclaim, Friday, March 13, 2020 as “American Legion 
Centennial Day” in the City of Rathdrum. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be 
affixed the official seal of the City of Rathdrum this 13th Day of March 
2020. 

 

                      
      Vic Holmes, Mayor 



 
PROCLAMATION 

 
 

 
VIETNAM WAR VETERANS DAY 
First Anniversary of the Vietnam War Veterans Recognitions Act of 2017 

March 29, 2020 
 
WHEREAS, Vietnam veterans who, in service to our Nation and in defense of liberty, 
fought gallantly against the spread of communism and defended the freedom of the 
Vietnamese people. 

 
WHEREAS, fifty-three years ago, in 1967, nearly 500,000 American troops served in 
South Vietnam, along with approximately 850,000 troops of our allies. 

 
WHEREAS, the Commonwealth recognizes this opportunity to recall, with humility, the 
sacrifices our veterans made for our freedom and our Nation's strength. 

 
WHEREAS, we embrace our responsibility to help our Vietnam veterans and their 
families heal from the heavy toll of war. We remember the more than 58,000 whose 
names are memorialized on a black granite wall in our Nation's capital for having borne 
the heaviest cost of war and also pay tribute to the brave patriots who suffered as 
prisoners of war, and we stand steadfast in our commitment not to rest until we account 
for the 1,253 heroes who have not yet returned to American soil. 

 
WHEREAS, we will honor all those who answered our Nation's call to duty and with 
strong conviction, our Nation pledges our enduring respect, our continuing care, and our 
everlasting commitment to all Vietnam veterans. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Victor Holmes, by virtue of the authority vested in me by the 
Constitution and Laws of the Commonwealth as Mayor, hereby proclaim March 29, 2020 
as 

 

VIETNAM WAR VETERANS DAY 
We call upon the entire community to honor the remarkable leadership and 
dedication of countless Vietnam veterans and their families. We thank and honor 
our veterans in the Commonwealth and throughout our country. We commit to 
continue efforts to recognize all veterans of the Vietnam War for their service and 
sacrifice, and to provide them with the heartfelt acknowledgement and gratitude 
that they and their families so richly deserve. 

 



 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands on this 

28th day of March 2020. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
                      
      Vic Holmes, Mayor 


	01a Council Agenda 03-25-20
	01b March-April Calendar
	05a Draft Council Minutes 03-11-20
	05b Draft Special Council Minutes 03-19-20
	05c Draft Emergency Council Minutes 03-21-20
	05d March Bills
	05da February CD Journal
	05e Corbin Crossing 4th Addition - Final Plat Staff_CC
	10a 2020 Rathdrum Mountain Site Host Agreement
	11a Finance Report 03-25-20
	12b American Legion 2020
	12c Vietnam War Veterans Proclamation - 2020



